
SWA 
Sinclair Water Authority 

126 Cay Drive Milledgeville, GA 31061 
Joseph D. Witcher Plant Manager 

Phone (706) 485-8993   Fax (706) 485-8994 
 

Agenda 

Monday, March 18, 2019 ◊ 5:00 PM 

Sinclair Water Plant 

 

Opening 
1. Call to Order 
2. Public Participation 

 
Minutes 
3. Approval of Minutes - January 28, 2019 Regular Meeting 

 
Reports 1 
4. Manager's Report - Joey Witcher 

a. Georgia Power Testing Schedule 
b. SWA Arsenic Testing Results 
c. Boat Quotes 

 
Old Business 
5. Bank Interest Rates Update 
6. Tree Removal Bids 
7. CLO2 Committee Meeting Update 
8. Membrane Contract with SUEZ 
9. Generator Grant Update 

 
New Business 
10. EPWSA TTHM Level Inquiry Letter 
11. Discuss SWA Draft and Final Agenda Submission Schedule 
12. Proposed 2019 Meeting Calendar 
13. Employee Insurance Opt Out Clause/Health Insurance Committee Update 

 
Reports II 
14. Plant Production Report 
15. Financial Reports 

 
Closing 
16. Next Meeting - May 20, 2019 
17. Adjournment 
  

1



Item Attachment Documents: 

 

3. Approval of Minutes - January 28, 2019 Regular Meeting 
  

2



DRAFT Minutes                                                             Page 1 of 5                                                                                     Approved 

January 28, 2019 

 

SWA 
Sinclair Water Authority 

126 Cay Drive Milledgeville, GA 31061 
Joseph D. Witcher Plant Manager 

Phone (706) 485-8993   Fax (706) 485-8994 
 

Minutes 

Monday, January 28, 2019 ◊ 5:00 PM 

Sinclair Water Plant 

 

The Sinclair Water Authority met on Monday, January 28, 2019 at approximately 5:00 PM at the 

Sinclair Water Plant, 126 Cay Drive, Milledgeville, Georgia 

 

PRESENT  

Chairperson Joan Minton 

Member Trevor Addison 

Member Sammy Hall 

Member Donna Van Haute 

Member David Waddell 

 

STAFF PRESENT 

Plant Manager Joey Witcher 

Clerk Lynn Butterworth 

 

 

Opening 
1. Call to Order 
Chairman Minton called the meeting to order at approximately 5:01 p.m.  

(Copy of agenda made a part of the minutes.) 

 
2. Public Participation 
Putnam BOC Chairman Billy Webster formally let the SWA board members know that he 

declined to serve on the board and that Commissioner Addison volunteered to serve so he is 

pleased to offer him as substitute.  He further advised that he plans to stay engaged but will not 

be able to attend every meeting. 

 
Chairman Minton introduced Lynn Butterworth as the new clerk for the Sinclair Water 

Authority. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

3



DRAFT Minutes                                                             Page 2 of 5                                                                                     Approved 

January 28, 2019 

 

Minutes 
3. Approval of Minutes - November 19, 2018 
Motion to approve the November 19, 2018 Minutes. 
Motion made by Member Hall, Seconded by Member Van Haute. 

Voting Yea: Member Addison, Member Hall, Member Van Haute, Member Waddell, 

Chairperson Minton 

 
Reports 1 
4. Manager's Report - Joey Witcher 
Plant Manager Joey Witcher reported the following: 

 The CLO2 is currently off line to allow each system to monitor for TTHMs without it to 

determine its necessity in the cold weather months. SWA staff is in favor of feeding it 

year-round due to the other benefits in taste and odor control as well as its superior ability 

to treat Iron and Manganese. Before shutting it down the staff had multiple stoppages in 

feed at night which caused gaps in the feed, some of which were multiple hours long. 

Anytime the machine senses a loss in vacuum or flow it shuts down and the generator 

stays off until the next day when the next shift shows up so that there are two people at 

the plant. Sometimes it’s all night meaning close to half the water treated that day is not 

treated with CLO2. If SWA had two people per shift this would not be an issue as 

someone could go to the intake when they get an alarm and reset the generator.   Mr. 

Alex Wiseman presented a DBP Evaluation-Comparison of Alternatives and he and Plant 

Manager Witcher recommend alternative #5, a Purate System with Bulk Chemical 

Supply at $151,000.  The Board asked for a manufacturer's rep to look at the system and 

see if adjustments can be made. 
(Copy of documents made a part of the minutes.) 

 
 A membrane replacement plan proposal from Suez was presented.  It is a guaranteed 

price for a ten-year period.  Plant Manager Witcher asked the board to think about the 

proposal.  The Board asked Plant Manager Witcher to have the attorney look over the 

proposal for the next meeting. 
(Copy of documents made a part of the minutes.) 

 
 Georgia Power Discharge - Several members of the SWA Board and Commissioners 

from both Baldwin and Putnam Counties attended tours of the Georgia Power dewatering 

facility earlier this month. The facility is, for all intents and purposes, a drinking water 

treatment plant which uses a filtration ballast, either sand or magnetite, in the 

sedimentation process. Properly operated, monitored and maintained it should be able to 

remove the contaminants listed on the Georgia Power dewatering plan provided the pond 

water is in the proper condition. Georgia Power personnel explained the schedule of 

monitoring and some tour attendees had concerns about the time from collection to the 

results being available to the public. It is possible that results could be more than a month 

old before the public could see them. Plant Manager Witcher advised that we may need to 

do our own testing and provided a quote.  The Board asked him to check with Georgia 

Power officials and see how often they will be testing and if results will be shared with 

SWA.   

 

4



DRAFT Minutes                                                             Page 3 of 5                                                                                     Approved 

January 28, 2019 

 

 Arsenic testing has been done for two years without seeing any.  Does the board wish to 

continue testing?  The board advised to keep doing what has been done in the past until 

Georgia Power's intentions can be confirmed. 

 
 Algae issues - a boat is needed to continue algae treatments.  A quote was received to 

purchase a new boat for $12,000 and an email from Mark Gatlin was distributed.  The 

board requested additional quotes to include new and used boats. 
(Copy of email made a part of the minutes.) 

 
 Generator Grant Application - Mr. Alex Wiseman distributed information on the GEMA 

Hazard Mitigation Grant Program to help in obtaining a backup generator.  Motion to 

instruct Carter & Sloope to authorize the pre-application. 
Motion made by Member Van Haute, Seconded by Member Addison. 

Voting Yea: Member Addison, Member Hall, Member Van Haute, Member Waddell, 

Chairperson Minton 

(Copy of grant program information made a part of the minutes.) 

 
 Bank CD's update - an email was received from Exchange Bank with current CD rates 

and information for a new CD.  Motion to authorize Plant Manager Witcher to issue an 

RFP for CD rates. 
Motion made by Member Waddell, Seconded by Member Van Haute 
Voting yea: Member Addison, Member Hall, Member Van Haute, Member Waddell, 

Chairperson Minton 

(Copy of email made a part of the minutes.) 
   

Old Business 
5. Trees on the Spurgeon/Intake property 
Plant Manager Witcher advised that he received quotes from Precision Tree Service for $3800.00 

and Kennedy and Sons for $1500.00 to cut down a path to the shoreline through the woods to the 

leaning trees for access to haul off.  Member Van Haute requested that he contact at least one 

other vendor for price comparison. 
Motion to authorize Plant Manager Witcher to proceed with the lowest quote for tree 

removal on the Spurgeon/Intake property. 
Motion made by Member Waddell, Seconded by Member Hall. 

Voting Yea: Member Addison, Member Hall, Member Van Haute, Member Waddell, 

Chairperson Minton 

(Copy of quotes made a part of the minutes.) 

 
6. Committee Report on Intake Improvements 
No discussion or action. 

 

 

 
 

 
 

 

5



DRAFT Minutes                                                             Page 4 of 5                                                                                     Approved 

January 28, 2019 

 

New Business 
7. Proposed Legislation of Board-Sect 6 HB398; The Act that created SWA 
Chairperson Minton distributed a handout with a change to the Local Legislation creating the 

Sinclair Water Authority.  She would like this sent to Baldwin and Putnam counties for 

comments. 
Motion to approve submitting the Local Legislation change request to Baldwin and 

Putnam counties. 
Motion made by Member Hall, Seconded by Member Addison. 

Voting Yea: Member Addison, Member Hall, Member Van Haute, Member Waddell, 

Chairperson Minton 

(Copy of language made a part of the minutes.) 

 
8. Proposal from Alex Wiseman of Carter & Sloope on the execution of the Generator Grant 

Application 
This item was discussed during the Plant Manager's report. 

 
Reports II 
9. Plant Production Reports 
Chairperson Minton advised that the Plant Production reports were in the meeting package to 

review.  No action was taken. 

 
10. Financial Reports 
Chairperson Minton advised that the Financial reports were in the meeting package to 

review.  No action was taken. 
 

Health Care & Benefits Committee Meeting Date: 
Member Van Haute advised that she met with Jonathan Shaw of ShawHankins and he will 

review the Health Care and Benefits information.  She and Chairperson Minton will meet to 

discuss after his review.  No action was taken. 

 
Closing 
11. Next Meeting - March 18, 2019 
Chairperson Minton advised that the next meeting is scheduled for March 18, 2019 at 5:00 p.m. 

 
 

 
 

 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

6



DRAFT Minutes                                                             Page 5 of 5                                                                                     Approved 

January 28, 2019 

 

12. Adjournment 
Motion to adjourn the meeting. 
Motion made by Member Hall, Seconded by Member Van Haute. 

Voting Yea: Member Addison, Member Hall, Member Van Haute, Member Waddell, 

Chairperson Minton 
 

 

Meeting adjourned at approximately 6:23 p.m. 
 

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

 

Lynn Butterworth      Joan Minton 

Clerk        Chairperson 

 

7



Item Attachment Documents: 

 

4. Manager's Report - Joey Witcher 
a. Georgia Power Testing Schedule 
b. SWA Arsenic Testing Results 
c. Boat Quotes 

  

8



9



10



11



12



13



14



15



16



17



18



19



20



21



22



23



24



25



Item Attachment Documents: 

 

6. Tree Removal Bids 
  

26



27



28



29



30



31



Item Attachment Documents: 

 

7. CLO2 Committee Meeting Update 
  

32



Chlorine Dioxide System Improvements

w SWA Committee meeting held February 21, 2019 to select final alternative for implementation.

v Existing chlorine dioxide system to remain at the raw water pump station with improvements below.

v Chemical supply to continue with tote delivery to minimize on-site storage volumes, maintain chemical

reactivity, and to minimize necessary site improvements. 

DESCRIPTION COST

1. CHEMICAL DISPOSAL $15,000

2. CHEMICAL STORAGE $20,400
a. 2 totes per chemical (1 active + 1 storage).  Each tote to be housed in enclosed 

polyethylene container with spill containment.  Use 1 existing enclosure plus purchase 3 

additional enclosures.

$8,100

b. Install metal carport for container storage. 12’x21’, 14-gauge galvanized steel framing, 29-

gauge metal roofing, 6’ leg spacing, 10’ eave height, standard roof style, anchored to 

existing concrete drive.  

$1,300

c. Counties to provide electrical lighting fixtures and wiring underneath carport 

and will provide electrical power supply from existing building.
$0

d. Purchase used forklift for tote unloading and handling.  Forklift to be permanently 

housed at the pump station.
$10,000

e. SWA/County personnel to install new chemical feed piping from totes to CLO2 

generator.  Utilize 2” Sch. 80 PVC conduit with 1” flexible tube carrier line.  One piping 

run required for each chemical.  Core existing concrete containment wall and core 

exterior building wall.  Secure with SS Unistrut, clamps, and anchors. 

$1,000

f. Chemical supplier will deliver totes to site without site modifications.  Should delivery be 

questionable, Counties will provide roadway improvements at a later date to widen 

shoulder or provide pull-off for unloading.

$0

3. CHLORINE DIOXIDE GENERATION $12,000
a. CLO2 generator to run off of potable water supply from Putnam County.  Much lower 

alarm frequency since change over from lake water supply.
$0

b. Replace two existing chemical metering pumps due to age and reliability. $2,400

c. Add pressure monitoring switch on chlorine dioxide injection line for remote system 

monitoring.  SWA to install switch and Counties to install power supply and signal 

wiring/conduit. 

$600

d. Add chlorine dioxide on-line analyzer for remote monitoring. SWA to mount analyzer 

and install sample/drain piping. Counties to provide power supply and signal 

wiring/conduit.

$4,000

e. MR Systems to terminate all signal wiring, calibrate CLO2 analyzer, and provide 

SCADA modifications
$3,500

f. Add video surveillance system for remote monitoring. $1,500

g. Site certification for tote delivery not required.  Must submit sketch/layout of tote 

storage area to Water Specialties for records.
$0

4. TECHNICAL MEMO & SUBMITTAL FOR EPD APPROVAL $1,200

5. CONTINGENCIES $5,000

TOTAL ESTIMATED CONSTRUCTION COSTS $53,600

Annual Estimated Chemical Cost = $63,000

Annual Estimated Water Cost = $26,020

Existing chemical inventory no longer suitable.  SWA to transfer old Purate and Sulfuric 

Acid chemical inventory to totes for pick-up by third-party for disposal.

Preparation of site sketch, piping detail, tote and instrumentation details, and technical 

memo to be submitted to EPD for review and approval.  Package will also be submitted to 

Water Specialties for documentation of chemical storage provisions.

Sinclair Water Authority

S4000.018 March 18, 2019

33



Item Attachment Documents: 

 

10. EPWSA TTHM Level Inquiry Letter 
  

34



35



36



37



Item Attachment Documents: 

 

11. Discuss SWA Draft and Final Agenda Submission Schedule 
  

38



EXCERPT FROM PUTNAM COUNTY CODE OF ORDINANCES 

 
Sec. 2-37. - Agenda. 

The county manager shall prepare a detailed agenda on the subjects to be covered or acted on 

and/or objectives to be met for each regular scheduled meeting, called meeting, public hearing, 

work session, or any other special meeting. The detailed agenda shall be made available to 

each commissioner at least three business days before each regular scheduled board meeting, 

called meeting, public hearing, work session, or any other special meeting. 

A commissioner may add items to the agenda at any time. Any item requiring action must be 

added at least four business days prior to a meeting. An action item added less than four 

business days may be discussed at the meeting and laid on the table for action at the next 

meeting. In case of an emergency, the board may waive this requirement. 

A copy of the agenda and a list of those members present shall be made available to the public 

for inspection within two business days of the adjournment of any meeting. 

(Ord. of 4-5-2002, § 1.07; Ord. of 4-3-2009(1); Amend. of 9-20-2011) 

State Law reference— Similar provisions, O.C.G.A. § 50-14-1(e). 

 

Sec. 2-38. - Consent agenda. 

A consent agenda may be prepared by the county manager for the board to unanimously adopt 

motions on routine items. Any items of business that are expected to receive unanimous 

approval and where no debate is expected may be placed on a consent agenda. 

At the appropriate time of the meeting, the chairperson shall read all of the items on the 

consent agenda. If a commissioner objects to an item being on the consent agenda, the 

chairperson shall move that particular item to the regular agenda. Following the reading of the 

consent agenda, the chairperson will ask for unanimous approval of the items on the consent 

agenda. If there are no objections, all the items on the consent agenda will be adopted by 

unanimous consent. 

(Ord. of 4-5-2002, § 1.08) 

 

Sec. 2-40. - Order of business. 

All regular board meetings shall substantially follow an established order of business. The 

order shall be as follows: 

(1) Call to order; 

(2) Invocation; 

(3) Pledge of allegiance; 

(4) Special presentations; 

(5) Public comments; 

(6) Approval of agenda; 

(7) Consent agenda; 

(8) Other agenda items; 

(9) Closed session, if necessary 

(10) County manager report; 

(11) County attorney report; 

(12) Commissioner announcements; 

(13) Adjournment. 

(Ord. of 4-5-2002, § 1.10; Amend. of 3-5-2010; Amend. of 6-19-2012 ) 

39



EXCERPT FROM BALDWIN COUNTY CODE OF ORDINANCES 

 
Sec. 2-57. - Agenda. 

(a) The county manager, with the advice of the chairman and the commissioners, shall 

prepare an agenda of subjects to be acted on for each meeting. The agenda shall be made 

available to the commissioners at least one business day before every board meeting. 

(b) Members of the public may request that a particular subject be placed on the agenda for 

the following meeting. To be considered, this request must be submitted in writing to the 

county manager and received by 3:00 p.m. on Thursday prior to the Tuesday meeting. 

(c) The order of the agenda may be changed during a meeting by a majority vote of the board. 

A new subject that requires urgent attention may be added to the agenda during a meeting by 

a two-thirds vote of the board. 

(d) A copy of the agenda and a list of those members present shall be made available to the 

public for inspection within two business days of the adjournment of any meeting. 

 

Sec. 2-58. - Consent agenda. 

(a) A consent agenda may be prepared by the county manager for the board to unanimously 

adopt motions on routine items. Any items of business that are expected to receive unanimous 

approval and whether no debate is expected may be placed on a consent agenda.  

(b) At the appropriate time of the meeting, the chairman shall read all of the items on the 

consent agenda. If a commissioner objects to an item being on the consent agenda, the 

chairman shall move that particular item to the regular agenda. Following the reading of the 

consent agenda, the chairman will ask for unanimous approval of the items on the consent 

agenda. If there are no objections, all the items on the consent agenda will be adopted by 

unanimous consent. 

 

Sec. 2-60. - Order of business. 

All regular board meetings should follow an established order of business. The order is as 

follows: 

(1) Call to order. 

(2) Minutes. 

(3) Invited guests. 

(4) Reports from committees and departments. 

(5) Consent agenda. 

(6) Old business. 

(7) New business. 

(8) Public comments. 

(9) Adjournment. 

 

40



41



42



Item Attachment Documents: 

 

12. Proposed 2019 Meeting Calendar 
  

43



44



 

                    SWA 
         Sinclair Water Authority 

126 Cay Drive Milledgeville, GA 31061 
Joseph D. Witcher Plant Manager 

Phone (706) 485-8993   Fax (706) 485-8994 
 

 
 

2019 MEETING CALENDAR 
 

January 28, 2019 Monday 5:00 PM 

March 18, 2019 Monday 5:00 PM 

May 20, 2019 Monday 5:00 PM 

July 15, 2019 Monday 5:00 PM 

September 16, 2019 Monday 5:00 PM 

November 18, 2019 Monday 5:00 PM 

 

45



Item Attachment Documents: 

 

14. Plant Production Report 
  

46



47



48



49



50



51



52



53



54



55



56



57



58



59



60



61



62



63



64



Item Attachment Documents: 

 

15. Financial Reports 
  

65



66



67



68



69



70



71


	Top
	1. 20190318 SWA Call to Order
	2. 20190318 SWA Public Participation
	3. 20190318 SWA Minutes
	DRAFT 2019-01-28 SWA Minutes.docx

	4. 20190318 SWA Manager Report
	Georgia Power Sampling.pdf
	2017 Arsenic Testing.pdf
	2018 Arsenic Testing.pdf
	Boat Chart.pdf
	Boat Quotes.pdf

	5. 20190318 SWA Interest Rates
	6. 20190318 SWA Tree Removal
	Tree Quotes.pdf

	7. 20190318 SWA CLO2 Committee
	Chlorine dioxide_final selection.pdf

	8. 20190318 SWA Membrane Contract
	9. 20190318 SWA Generator Grant
	10. 20190318 SWA TTHM Level
	EPWSA Letter-TTHM.pdf

	11. 20190318 SWA Agenda Submission
	Baldwin & Putnam Code-Agendas.docx
	Open Meetings Law-Meeting Agendas-edited.pdf
	Open Meetings Law-Notice of Regularly Scheduled Meetings-edited.pdf

	12. 20190318 SWA 2019 Calendar
	Proposed 2019 Meeting Schedule.pdf
	2019 SWA Meeting Calendar.docx

	13. 20190318 SWA Employee Insurance
	14. 20190318 SWA Plant Report
	Plant Reports-rotated.pdf

	15. 20190318 SWA Financials
	Financials.pdf
	2019 Billing Budget.pdf

	16. 20190318 SWA Next Meeting
	17. 20190318 SWA Adjourn
	Bottom

